
Minutes Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 July 10, 2012 

 

   
 Margie Barrios Anthony Botelho Robert Rivas Jerry Muenzer Jaime De La Cruz 
 District No. 1 District No. 2 District No. 3 District No. 4 District No. 5 
  Vice-Chair   ___Chair____  
           County Administrat ion Building – Board of Supervisors Chambers, 481 Fourth Street, Hollister, California 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
JULY 10, 2012  

ACTION MINUTES  
 
 The Board of Supervisors of San Benito County met in the Board Chambers on 
the above date in regular session.  Supervisors De La Cruz, Botelho, Rivas, Muenzer 
and Barrios were present.  Also present were County Administrative Officer Rich Inman, 
County Counsel Matt Granger and Clerk of the Board Denise Thome.  Chair De La Cruz 
presided. 
 
9:00 a.m. CALL TO ORDER: 
a) Supervisor Rivas led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
b) Upon motion duly made, seconded and carried, acknowledged Certificate of 

Posting. 
 

c) PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS: 
 

 BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 
 Assembly member Luis Alejo gave a presentation on legislative updates and 

answered the Board’s questions.  File #156 
 
 BOARD OF SUPERVISORS – M. Barrios: 
  Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Barrios and seconded by 

Supervisor Botelho, approved proclamation honoring Mari Rossi as 2012 Ag 
Woman of the Year. (Unanimous) File #430 

Supervisor Barrios presented Mari Rossi with the proclamation honoring 
her as 2012 Ag Woman of the Year. 

 
 COMMUNITY MEDIA ACCESS PARTNERSHIP – Kathy Bisbee: 
  CMAP Executive Director Kathy Bisbee gave a PowerPoint presentation 

of the 2012 annual CMAP report.  File #119 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

 
1) Conference with Labor Negotiator: 
 Authority: California Government code Section 54957.6 
 Agency Designated Chief Negotiator: Jodan and Associates, Linzie Daniel 

SAN BENITO COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 



Minutes Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 July 10, 2012 

 Employee Organization: Deputy Sheriff’s Association, SEIU Local 521 
  SEIU Internal Organizer Henry Soria reported that the previous week the 

employee representatives met and presented a package, their proposal, which 
would have created 1.8 million dollars from their bargaining unit.  He indicated 
that the general unit voted the previous day for 1.3 million savings. 

  The Board adjourned into closed session at 9:50 a.m. and reconvened 
into regular session at 10:41 a.m. 

  No reportable action File #235.6 
   
d) Public Comment:  Victoria Montoya spoke in regards to the Westside Promise 

Neighborhood Center. She stated that she was on the San Benito County Health 
Foundation (SBCHF) Board and wanted to know if anyone contacted the 
SBCHF. 

Supervisor Barrios indicated that Ms. Montoya’s concerns were valid.  She 
added that she was on the Westside promise Neighborhood Center Committee. 
She stated that the Memorandum of Understanding would be presented at the 
July 24, 2012 Board of Supervisors meeting and all questions would be 
answered at that time. 
 Marty Richman commented that he was sorry Assembly member Alejo 
had to leave and that he would be contacting him regarding issues of Hollister 
and San Benito County bypass and problems with Cal Trans.  He added that any 
unfunded mandate is a tax increase.  He spoke of the unfair playing field in 
regards to grant writing. 
 Brad Sullivan, speaking on behalf of Duke Energy Generation System, 
stated that there would be a breakfast on Wednesday, July 18, 2012 at 8:30 a.m. 
at San Juan Oaks which would be open to the public.  He explained that they 
were the master developers of the Panoche Valley Solar farm.  He added that 
the company had an excellent environmental record. 
 

e) Department Head Announcements:   
  Management Analyst Janelle Cox reported that the Health Trust had 
awarded the county with a $61,500 grant for the Parks and Recreation District 
and the money would be used for the first phase of the project to see if people 
are interested in a park district. 
  Public Works Administrator Steve Wittry stated that Prescott Road near 
San Juan Bautista would be closed the next week for repairs on Monday and 
Tuesday. 
  Supervisor Botelho asked if there would be signage by San Juan Highway 
to direct traffic. 
  Mr. Wittry stated that lighted message boards would be up. 
  Supervisor Botelho asked him to remind dispatchers. 
  Mr. Wittry stated they were in the loop. 
 

f) Board Announcements, Introductions and Presentations:   
  Supervisor Barrios elaborated on the ERAF effort that was made and 

noted that Assembly member Alejo stated they may be able to bring it back.  She 
spoke of the possibility of a multi-county effort the following year.  She 
commented that they were not done and would be bringing it back in a different 
form. 

  Chairman De La Cruz asked if they had the money in reserves. 



Minutes Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 July 10, 2012 

  County Administrative Officer Rich Inman replied that yes they did have 
the money. 

  Supervisor Botelho stated that one of his priorities is the General Plan 
revision and was proud that the Board had taken a step forward.  He felt it was 
appropriate to bring forward what has been accomplished with the General Plan.  
He stated that for the sake of transparency and integrity they should bring the 
update sooner rather than later. 

  Chairman De La Cruz requested presentation at the July 24, 2012 
meeting and requested that it be done in the morning. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Botelho and seconded by Supervisor 
Rivas approved Consent Agenda items with the exception of Items 8, 9 and 13 which 
were pulled for discussion. (Unanimous) 
 
AGRICULTURAL COMMISSIONER – R. Ross: 
2) Approved contract with the Department of Food & Agriculture to provide 

services in the Light Brown Apple Moth quarantine trapping for the period of 
January 1, 2012 through September 30, 2012, in the amount of $20,183.55.  File 
#1.1 

 
CLERK OF THE BOARD – D. Thome: 
3)  Approved the action minutes of the June 5, 2012 regular meeting and the June 

12 and June 27, 2012 special meetings. 
 
DISTRICT ATTORNEY – C. Hooper: 
4) Approved agreement with BounceBack, Inc. for services related to the 

Misdemeanor Bad Check Diversion Program for the period of July 10, 2012 
through July 10, 2015; and authorized the District Attorney to sign agreement. 
File #205 

 
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY – M. Corona: 
5) Approved and adopted the Workforce Investment Act (WIA) Adult Work 

Experience Agreement Template and authorized the Interim Director of HHSA 
and/or the Deputy Director of CSWD to enter contracts on the county’s behalf on 
the approved agreement template. File #939 

 
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY – M. Corona: 
6) Approved contract amendment No. 1 with Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital 

extending term of contract to September 30, 2012 in the amount of $12,180 to 
provide an Eligibility Worker to patients of the hospital who are uninsured. File #130 

 
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY – M. Corona: 
7) Approved agreement with Public Authority for conducting In Home Supportive 

Services to provide background checks and orientations for the period of July 1, 
2012 to June 30, 2014 for amount of $46,039.  File #130 

 
 
 
 



Minutes Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 July 10, 2012 

HUMAN RESOURCES – R. Inman: 
8) Adopt Resolution to reduce compensation of car allowances for County 

Department Heads from $500 per month to $350 per month for fiscal year 
2012/13. (Res. No. 2012-35) 

 Item was pulled for discussion. 
           Public Works Administrator Steve Wittry stated that different department 

heads have different needs regarding auto allowances.  He explained that he 
drives between 1,200 and 1,400 miles in his personal vehicle. He requested that 
they exempt the Road Commissioner from this and change the car allowance to 
zero and reimburse mileage instead only when using a personal vehicle. 

           Supervisor Botelho indicated that he could see that the Public Works 
Administrator would have an exception and that $350 compensation was not 
enough. 

           Mr. Wittry stated that $500 does not even cover it. 
           Supervisor Botelho stated that he would like to go with the item that day 

and asked Mr. Wittry to keep a personal log and come back with the data. 
           Supervisor Muenzer asked County Counsel if they approved the matter 

that day and after further thought could they amend it at a future date. 
           County Counsel Granger replied yes. 
           Supervisor Rivas indicated that he didn’t take that into consideration, and it 

made sense, to exempt certain employees.  He recommended approving now 
and giving more thought to exemptions. 

           Supervisor Barrios suggested they approve it as is today and asked Mr. 
Wittry to try and use a county vehicle and keep a record for the next ninety days 
and perhaps reimburse retroactively. 

           Mr. Wittry noted that the Road Commissioner’s mileage was refundable 
from the gas tax and was not general fund money. 

          Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Botelho and seconded by 
Supervisor Barrios, adopted Resolution No. 2012-35 to reduce compensation 
of car allowances for County Department Heads from $500 per month to $350 
per month for fiscal year 2012/13. (Unanimous)  

           Chairman De La Cruz directed that the matter be brought back in ninety 
days for further consideration.  File #630 

 
PROBATION DEPARTMENT – B. Cardall: 
9) Approve and authorize the Chief Probation Officer to enter into agreement 

with Point and Pay LLC for credit card electronic payment services to be 
located in the Probation Department. 

 Item was pulled for discussion. 
          Supervisor Barrios referred to page 107 and indicated it said 60 days and 
should say 30 days. 
 Chief Probation Officer Brent Cardall stated that he would find out. 
          Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Barrios and seconded by 
Supervisor Botelho, approved and authorized the Chief Probation Officer to 
enter into agreement with Point and Pay LLC for credit card electronic payment 
services to be located in the Probation Department with amendment to 30 day 
notice as opposed to 60.  (Unanimous)  File #510 

 
 
 



Minutes Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 July 10, 2012 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT – S. Wittry: 
10) Adopted plans and specifications, accept all bids and awarded contract to 

Daleo, Inc. for the Juvenile Hall Fiber Optic Project No. PWB-1207 in the amount 
of $11,812.50 and authorized the Public Works Administrator to sign agreement 
and issue change orders in an amount not to exceed $3,000.00.  File #105.3 

 
SHERIFF’S OFFICE – D. Thompson: 
11) Declared vehicles listed on attached memo to be surplus; approved the transfer 

of the vehicles to South Bay regional Training consortium in exchange for 
Sheriff’s training activities; and directed staff to remove surplus vehicles from the 
inventory per County practice. File #110 

 
SHERIFF’S OFFICE – D. Thompson: 
12) Adopted Ordinance No. 898 of the County of San Benito to Repeal and 

Replace Ordinance No. 711 providing for the preparation, direction and 
coordination of Emergency Services. (Continued from 7/19/12 meeting) File #75.5 

 
SHERIFF’S OFFICE – D. Thompson: 
13) Approve Multi-Agency Bomb Squad and Weapons of Mass Destruction 

Agreement with the Monterey County Sheriff’s Department and City of 
Hollister Police Department and authorize the Sheriff to sign agreement.  

 Item was pulled for discussion. 
           Sheriff Sergeant Scott Becker gave a staff report, noting that it costs 

nothing and keeps the overtime down. 
           Supervisor Barrios noted that there were a couple spelling errors on page 

192. 
           Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Barrios and seconded by 

Supervisor Muenzer approved Multi-Agency Bomb Squad and Weapons of 
Mass Destruction Agreement with the Monterey County Sheriff’s Department and 
the City of Hollister Police Department, with spelling corrections, and authorized 
the Sheriff to sign agreement. (Unanimous) File #110 

 
 PUBLIC HEARINGS – 9:00 A.M. (Or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard)  
 
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY – M. Corona: 
14) Hold a Public Hearing to hear all objections, protests, or requested 

changes or corrections to the written report of service charges for County 
Service Areas #36 (Emergency Medical Services and Advanced Life 
Support) for FY 2012/2013; and adopt resolution accepting the annual 
report for CSA #36 and benefit assessment charges set forth therein. (Res. 
No. 2012-36) 

           Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Coordinator Marcie Morrow gave a 
staff report and a brief description of County Service Area #36. 

           Supervisor Botelho asked if they could use some of the CSA #36 funds 
towards fire. 

           Ms. Morrow stated that the CSA was specifically for EMS life support 
service. 

           Supervisor Botelho asked about money for equipment. 
           Ms. Morrow replied that yes, the same amount of $2,000 went to all 

agencies. 



Minutes Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 July 10, 2012 

           Supervisor Botelho asked if it was flexible to supplement staffing. 
           Ms. Morrow explained that wording was specific to Advanced Life Support 

(ALS).  She added that she could look into it. 
           Supervisor Barrios noted that the assessment was $14.00 and asked if 

there was a surplus to cover charging less. 
           Ms. Morrow replied yes and that it was rolled over to keep the tax lower. 
           Chairman De La Cruz asked how much there was in reserves. 
           Ms. Morrow explained that they did the rollover to offset costs. 
           Chairman De La Cruz opened the public hearing. 
           Richard Bettencourt asked if the whole county and cities were taxed with 

the county service area. 
           Chairman De La Cruz replied affirmatively. 
           There being no further public comment, the Chair closed the public 

hearing. 
           Ms. Morrow explained that it was determined by benefit assessment units 

and more than just parcels. 
           Supervisor Muenzer stated that fire does respond for emergency medical 

services and it needed to be looked at. 
           County Counsel Matt Granger stated that the CSA was created in the early 

1990’s and preceded Prop. 218 and the entire county would have to vote to 
change it.  He noted that Ms. Morrow indicated that it did not include fire. 

           Supervisor Botelho commented that fire was a huge issue and that 90% of 
fire calls are medical aid calls.  He felt they needed to start thinking about it. 

           Chairman De La Cruz directed Ms. Morrow to report back in two weeks 
regarding funding allowances. 

           Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Barrios and seconded by 
Supervisor Muenzer adopted Resolution No. 2012-36 accepting the annual 
report for CSA #36 and benefit assessment charges set forth therein. 
(Unanimous) File # CSA 36 

  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – 9:00 A.M. (Or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard)  
 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT – G. Armstrong: 
15) Hold a Public Hearing to consider and potentially adopt Negative 

Declaration and an ordinance regarding Residential Multiple Zoning as part 
of zone change 11-173, amending Section 25.11.045 of Chapter 25.11 of 
Title 25 of the San Benito County Code.  Applicant: County of San Benito. 
Owner: Multiple entities.  

 (Ord. No.899) 
           Public Works Director Gary Armstrong gave a staff report. 
           Supervisor Barrios felt it was advantageous and provided more affordable 

housing opportunities and gave the county additional impact fees. 
           Chairman De La Cruz opened the public hearing. 
           There being no comment, the Chair closed the public hearing. 
           Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Muenzer and seconded by 

Supervisor Botelho adopted the CEQA and Zone Change findings and adopted 
Ordinance No. 899 amending section 25.11.045 of Chapter 25.11 of Title 25 of 
the San Benito County Code, regarding setbacks in an RM district.  (Unanimous) 
File #790 



Minutes Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 July 10, 2012 

   
REGULAR AGENDA: 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE – R. Inman: 
16) Presentation by the California State Association of Counties - Excess 

Insurance Authority concerning their Health Program. 
           County Administrative Officer Rich Inman gave a brief staff report and 

noted that the presentation had already been made to the insurance and budget 
committees.  He added that they thought there might be an opportunity for 
savings, but apparently not and that it would be explained. 

           CSAC Excessive Insurance Authority Consultant Tom Sher gave a report 
noting that initial research indicated they would perhaps be 8% to 9% cheaper 
than Cal PERS.  He stated that Cal PERS came out with their new rates and 
after comparing the costs from Cal PERS and refining analysis and updating 
information, Cal PERS rates were better for this year overall noting that Medicare 
rates from Cal PERS had decreased 15%.  He concluded that Cal PERS was 
better for San Benito County for 2013 and perhaps they could look at it again in 
2014. 

           The Board thanked Mr. Sher for his presentation. 
           Chairman De La Cruz opened it up for public comment. 
           Administrative Services Manager Nadine DaRoza stated that she was on 

the Insurance Committee and commended Mr. Sher on educating them. 
           Marty Richman spoke of the possibility of a penalty if went somewhere 

else besides the local hospital. 
 
          The Board adjourned to lunch at 11:48 a.m. and reconvened into regular session 

at 1:30 p.m. 
  
COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE – R. Inman: 
17) Receive Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Presentation. 
           Information Technology (IT) manager Ray Espinosa gave a brief  report on 

the current financial systems and proceeded to give a PowerPoint presentation 
on the three systems being considered which were; SunGard Onesolution, Tyler 
Munis System, and New World ERP System. 

           Discussion ensued between supervisors and staff. 
          Marty Richman spoke under public comment noting that he had experience 

with these systems and that his son and daughter were systems analysts.  He 
added that it would take at least 2 years to implement 

           Chairman De La Cruz closed public comment. 
           Directed staff to bring back a proposal with financial analysis. File #119.1 
 
          The Board adjourned into closed session at 2:22 p.m. and reconvened into 

regular session at 3:36 p.m.            
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

 
18) Public Employee Appointment 
 Government Code Section 54957 
 Title: Director County of San Benito Health and Human Services Agency 



Minutes Approved by the Board of Supervisors on 8/14/12 July 10, 2012 

           County Counsel Matt Granger stated that there was no reportable action. 
File #235.6 

 
                    Upon motion duly made by Supervisor Rivas and seconded by Supervisor 

Barrios, moved to adjourn the meeting.  (Unanimous) 
 

                                      * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 
 

           The vote of each member of the Board of Supervisors upon each matter at 
the foregoing meeting, unless otherwise stated, was as follows: 

 
 AYES:  SUPERVISORS: De La Cruz, Botelho, Rivas, Muenzer, Barrios 
 NOES: SUPERVISORS: None 
 ABSENT: SUPERVISORS: None 
 
  There being no further business, the Board adjourned at 3:37 p.m. to July 

24, 2012 at 9:00 a.m. 
 
      JAIME DE LA CRUZ, CHAIRMAN 
      San Benito County Board of Supervisors 
ATTEST: 
Denise R. Thome, Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	County Administration Building – Board of Supervisors Chambers, 481 Fourth Street, Hollister, California
	REGULAR MEETING
	JULY 10, 2012
	ACTION MINUTES


